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SF 30 Continuation Page

The purpose of this amendment is to amend solicitation Clause, amend the Solicitation,
answer Questions, provide clarification to the past performance questionnaire, amend
specification 10C00005, and post informational only Drawings and Specifications.

Section 1 Amend Clause

REFERENCE: RFP Section H.12, Page 37 & 39, KSC 52.242-90 CONTROLS
APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTOR'S ACTIVITIES (MAY 2009)

DELETE and REPLACE with:

KSC 52.242-90 CONTROLS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTOR'S
ACTIVITIES (AUG 2009)

The publications below, and subsequent revisions thereof, are incorporated herein by
reference. These publications prescribe regulatory and procedural criteria which are
applicable to this contract. The contractor shall promptly take corrective action upon
notice of noncompliance from the Contracting Officer or his/her authorized
representative(s) with any provision of the publications listed below. Any questions
regarding this clause or applicability of compliance documents should be directed to the
Contracting Officer. :

The following compliance documents may be found at:
hitn /Adelobal kse nasa sov/ReferencedDocumenis

458W140-201 45th Space Wing Instruction 40-201 Radiation Protection Program (In
addition to KNPD 1860.1, applicable to contracts for services performed
at CCAFS)

QA-UG-0001 KSC Employee Safety & Health Pocket Guide (See Note 1)

KNPR 8715.2 Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan

KNPD 1440.1 KSC Records Management and Vital Records Programs

KNPR. 1600.1 KSC Security Procedural Requirements

KNPD 1600.3 Use of Alcoholic Beverages on Kennedy Space Center (KSC) Property

KNPD 18002 KSC Hazard Communication Program - In addition, Contractor shall

submit the material safety data sheets in hard copy to the MESC or
successor contractor for NASA/KSC Materials Safety Data Sheet

Archive.
KINPD 1810.1 KSC Occupational Medicine Program
KNPR 1820.3 KSC Hearing Loss Prevention Program
KNPR 1820.4 KSC Respiratory Protection Program
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KNPR 1840.19 KSC Industrial Hygiene Programs
KNPR 1860.1 KSC Ionizing Radiation Protection Program
KNPR 1860.2 KSC Nonionizing Radiation Protection Program
KNPR 1870.1 KSC Sanitation Program
KNPR 2570.1 KSC Radio Frequency Spectrum Management Procedural Requirements

During periods of special testing on Kennedy Space Center and at the
Cape Canaveral Air Force Station, the Contractor may be required to
cease radiating on any radio equipment that may be utilized at the time.
Any construction equipment utilized by the Contractor which may be
causing radio frequency interference will be required to shut down until
the interference is mitigated.

KNPR 4000.1 Supply and Equipment System Manual

KNPR 6000.1 Transportation Support System

KNPR 8500.1 KSC Environmenta! Requirements

KNPR 8715.3 KSC Safety Practices Procedural Requirements
KNPR 8830.1 Facilities and Real Property Procedural Requirements

Note 1: QA-UG-0001 Emergency Medical Treatment

The contractor shall immediately call for assistance with personnel injury or illness for
any incident requiring emergency medical treatment for contractor or subcontractor
personnel, or invitees on KSC, or if any person on the job site is rendered unconscious.
The contractor shall require the victim to sign an appropriate “refusal of treatment” form,
if medical evaluation or treatment is offered and refused.

Emergency Response onsite at KSC or CCAFS
911 from a landline phone service
321-867-7911 from a cell phone

Section 2 Solicitation Amendment

REFERENCE RFP, M.1 BASIS FOR CONTRACT AWARD (3) Price Evaluation -
Part 2(a), Page 102

Remove from section:

1. Labor $
2. Material $
3. Overhead b

Do not submit a detailed price proposal {i.e. labor category breakouts and
inventory of materials).
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REFERENCE RFP L.17 GENERAL PROPOSAL PREPARATION
INSTRUCTIONS PART 2 — PRICE EVAUATION Page 91 TABLE B - PART 2 -
PROPERLY SUBMITTED OFFER CONSISTS OF:

REMOVE AND REPLACE WITH:

Proposal Section -
Price Volume — Part 2

. o e

Page Limit

(Specify limit) No. of Copies

Completed SF 1442, Blk 14-20, An
authorized representative of the Not Applicable 3
Offeror must s1gn the SF 1442.

Page 1 of all amendments issued
signed by an authorized
representative of the Offeror. This
requirement only applies if Not Applicable 3
amendment receipts are not
acknowledged on the signed SF 1442
submitted. :

Completed Sec. B with prices for
Line Items 0001, 0002, in addition,
complete the following information: i
1. Labor} Not Applicable 3
2. Material $
3. Overhead §

Executed Bid Bond in accordance %Not Applicable | 1

with NFS 1852.228-73

Safety and Health Plan in accordance |, N  fimit S B ; N
with NFS 1852.223-73 0 pag

Subcontractmg Plan (1f a Iarge Not Applxcable | ,

business)

Section 3 Question and Answers
1. REFERENCE: General

QUESTION: What are the Liquidated Damages (LDs) that could be assessed to
the contractor in the event project is not completed within the period of
performance specified in the RFP?

"ANSWER: The Request for Proposal does not contain Liquidated Damages
clauses with regards to performance. The Government reserves the right to claim
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damages caused by the contractor’s failure to complete performance in the time
period specified in the contract.

2. REFERENCE: RFP Section C, Paragraph C.1, Subparagraph CLIN
0001

QUESTION: This project involves only partial demolition per the RFP reference
above and during the organized site visit on July 29m, the Government (NASA)
stated that another contractor under a different contract would be demolishing
the existing platforms and systems. The Government stated during the site visit
that they would provide the drawings/design/specifications of the demolition
work being performed by the other contractor te the perspective contractors of
the Construction of Platforms in High Bay 3. When will this information be
provided?

ANSWER: The drawing and specifications, 10C00011 and 10C00012, for the
removel of the existing Shuttle extensible platforms, which is being performed
under a separate contract, are provided as attachments to this amendment for
informational use only. These drawings are not part of the Construction drawing
package associated with this praject.

3. REFERENCE: DPrawing 10C00003, Sheet 51, General Notes:
Structural #3

QUESTION: The note references drawing 10C00011 for VAB High Bay 3
Removal and disposal of extensible platforms. When will this drawing be
provided?

ANSWER: The drawing and specifications, 10C00011 and 10C00012, for the
removal of the existing Shuttle extensible platforms, which is being performed
under a separate contract, are provided as attachments to this amendment for
informational use only. These drawings are not part of the Construction drawing
package associated with this project.

4. REFERENCE: Specification 14.21.13 — Electric Traction Elevators

QUESTION: Part 1.3 of referenced specification states “New components shall
match existing system. See 79K34350 Shop Drawings for details.” Are these
shop drawings provided as part of this RFP? If not, please provide them.
Drawing A-301, Note C also references “79K34350 Shop Drawings.”

ANSWER: Drawing 79K34350 will not be provided as part of this RFP. The
_references to Shop Drawings 79K34350 are in error. The appropriate electrical
diagrams for the existing control systems for elevators 13, 14 and 15 are being

provided as attachments to this amendment. The drawings are 13-E8336 (24
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sheets), 14-E8336 (24 sheets), and E8249 (45 sheets). These drawings are only
provided for information on the existing elevator control systems and represent the
existing elevator configuration; they do not represent work to be performed under
this contract.

5. REFERENCE: Specification 14.21.13 — Electric Traction Elevators
QUESTION: Part 1.3 of referenced specification does not specify a particular

elevator vendor. Does NASA have a preferred elevator installation &
maintenance vendor?

ANSWER: No, NASA does not have a preferred elevator installation and
maintenance vendor.

6. REFERENCE: General

QUESTION: Please confirm that Gate B (north side of VAB) can be used for
vehicle access (including truck deliveries) to the VAB.

ANSWER: Yes, Gate B on the north side of the VAB will be available for
construction access, both personnel and vehicles.

7. REFERENCE: General

QUESTION: Please confirm that Gate K6-999 can be used for pedestrian access
to the VAB.

ANSWER: No, Gate K6-999 requires an electronic access pass, which will not be
available to the contractor. Personnel supporting this construction may enter the
VAB perimeter via Gate B.

8. REFERENCE: RFP, Section E.3 — Quality Requirements

QUESTION: Part (m)(1) of the referenced section requires “the Contractor to
provide and maintain currently calibrated gauges and other measuring and
testing devices necessary to assure the work conforms to contract requirements.”
Please confirm the Contractor is not required to provide (i.e., turnover) any test
equipment to the Client (NASA) as part of this contract.

ANSWER: Unless specifically called out in the Solicitation, the Government takes
no title to any devices used during the performance of this contract.
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9. REFERENCE: RFP, Section E.3 — Quality Requirements

QUESTION: Part (m)(1) of the referenced section requires “the Contractor to
provide and maintain currently calibrated gauges and other measuring and
testing devices necessary to assure the work conforms to contract requirements.”
Please confirm the Contractor is only required to maintain/test equipment as
needed to perform the Contract Scope of Work,

ANSWER: The contractor is required to maintain/test equipment necessary to
assure that the work conforms to the contract requirements during performance of
this contract.

10. REFERENCE: RFP, Section E.3 — Quality Requirements

QUESTION: Part (m)(2) of the referenced section requires the Contractor to
maintain calibration records for each item of test equipment. Please confirm the
Contractor is only required to maintain test records for test equipment
calibrated/re-calibrated during the project timeframe. Test equipment
calibrated prior to the project timeframe (but still in calibration) shall not
require test records, only the test laboratory’s seal on the equipment.

ANSWER: No, provide documentation for the calibration of any equipment for
which calibration is required.

11. REFERENCE: Drawings E-001, Note 10; Drawings ED-101 through
ED-106

QUESTION: It is our understanding that all demolition associated with this
project is to be performed by others under a separate contract. Please confirm.

ANSWER: No, that is not correct. All demolition indicated in the contract
drawings 10C00003 and 10C00007 shall be performed as part of this contract
unless otherwise noted. Where demolition is to be performed by others, it is so
stated.

12. REFERENCE: Drawing E-120, Notes A & B; Prawing E-202, Note D

QUESTION: If demolition is to be performed by others under a separate
contract, does this include demolition that is detailed on drawings other than the
demolition drawings? For example, drawing E-120 Notes A and B indicate that
the existing light fixtures are to be removed. Another example is on drawing E-
-202 Note D which indicates that an existing receptacle and associated wiring are
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to be removed and replaced. Similar instances are found on other drawings as
well.

ANSWER: No, that is not correct. All demolition indicated in the contract
drawings 10C00003 and 16C00007 shall be performed as part of this contract
unless otherwise noted. Where demolition is to be performed by others, it is so
stated.

13. REFERENCE: Section H.8 KSC On-Site Facilities and Services

QUESTION: The contract provisions indicate that 120/240V and 480V electrical
service is available for contractor use. Please indicate the location of the power
sources and available loads within the VAB and at the lay down area.

ANSWER: The Contractor may utilize those components of the existing power
system which are being shown for use for the new platforms to the extent that this
use does not interfere with the construction. The details for the power system
components to be used for the new platform design are on bid drawings 10C00003
E600 series drawings. There is an existing 480Volt power system feeding an office
complex in the lay down area, that will be available to power the
Contractor/Government office trailer complex. All other power will be the
contractor’s responsibility.

14. REFERENCE: 01.78.23 — Operation and Maintenance Data

QUESTION: Part 1.2 of referenced specification requires the Operation and
Maintenance data be submitted required prior to the training of the
Government personnel. This submission date is not realistic.

Manufacturer’s O&M data can be used during the training of Government
persennel.

However, the Operation and Maintenance data will contain testing and
performance data and other items that will net be available until just prior to
beneficial occupancy.

Please confirm that O&M data is not required to be formally submitted prior to
the training of the Government personnel.

ANSWER: No. Training should occur after testing and validation of the systems,
therefore system specific 0&M should be available. The O&M data is required
prior to training of the Government personnel. Training of Government personnel
must include all necessary specific documentation for the Government fo operate
and maintain the system installed as part of this contract. Examples O&M data
_required include but are not limited to programming menu text, air conditioning set
points, and other data that reflect the specific operating sequence or operating or
maintenance conditions that apply to the installed system. Only data necessary for
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training for operations and maintenance need be provided, not all testing or
validation data. Any exceptions to this would need to be coordinated and approved
by the Contracting Officer.

15. REFERENCE: 01.78.23 — Operation and Maintenance Data

QUESTION: Part 1.2.4 mentions “the Government’s Commissioning Authority.”
Please confirm that the Contractor is not required to provide a Commissioning
Authority.

ANSWER: Confirmed, the Contractor is not required to provide an independent
commissioning authority. The Contracting Officer or his designated representative
will be the Government’s Commissioning Authority.

16. REFERENCE: 01.75.00 — Starting and Adjusting (VAB HB3
Platforms for Constellation; VAB HB3 Life Safety Egress for
Constellation Platforms)

QUESTION: Part 1.2, SD-01 of referenced specification requires the
Manufacturer’s Sample Warranty and Operation and Maintenance Data be
submitted prior to construction and then again after construction (per SD-10).
This will require the Contractor to submit the O&M data and warranties twice.
Please confirm that the Manufacturer’s Sample Warranty and Operation and
Maintenance Data are not required to be submitted as a Preconstruction
submittal per SD-01, enly once per SD-10.

ANSWER: No. The Manufacturer’s Warranty and Operation and Muainfenance
Data are required to be subniitted as specified in SD-01 and SD-10. SD-01 calls for
Sample Manufacturer’s Warranty and Operation and Maintenance Data; where
SD-10 calls for the final Manufacturer’s Warranty and Operation and
Maintenance Data.

17. REFERENCE: 01.75.00 — Starting and Adjusting (VAB HB3
Platforms for Constellation; VAB HB3 Life Safety Egress for
Constellation Platforms)

QUESTION: Part 1.2.4.4 of referenced specification requires test procedures and
recording forms be submitted to the Contracting Officer 21 days prior to the
propoesed test date. Please confirm that the Government’s Commissioning
Authority is responsible for the preparation and submission of these test
procedures and recording forms.

- ANSWER: No. Test procedures and reporting forms as required by the technical
sections (divisions 02-43) of the specifications are the responsibility of the
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Contractor and shall be submitted to the Government for review per the
specifications.

18. REFERENCE: 26.00.00.00.20 — Basic Electrical Materials and
Methods (VAB HB3 Platforms for Constellation; VAB HB3 Life
Safety Egress for Constellation Platforms)

QUESTION: Part 1.8 of referenced specification requires operating instructions
be posted for each system and principal item of equipment. Some of the
operating instructions are hundreds of pages in length. It is not pessible to post
this quantity of paperwork at each piece of equipment. Operation and
Maintenance data will be provided per specification 01.78.23. Please confirm
that part 1.8 of referenced specification is not required.

ANSWER: Confirmed you are correct; part 1.8 does not apply to any of the
technical sections. Operation and Maintenance data shall be provided per
specification 01.78.23.and as specified in the other technical sections.

19. REFERENCE: Specification 01.78.00.00.40 — Closeout Submittals
(VAB HB3 Platforms for Constellation; VAB HB3 Life Safety Egress
for Constellation Platforms)

QUESTION: Part 1.3, SD-08 of the referenced specification requires that
Preventative Maintenance and Condition Monitoring and Inspection Schedules
(also known as Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) Plans) be submitted to
the CLIENT. Although listed under SD-08 (Manufacturer’s Instructions), these
submittals would need to be prepared by a firm specializing in Commissioning
and RCM, and not the manufacturer of the equipment. These submittals would
be in addition to the manufacturer’s Operations and Maintenance Data. Please
confirm that Preventative Maintenance and Condition Monitoring and
Inspection Schedules (a.k.a. RCM Plans) are required. If RCM Plans are
required, please confirm they can be prepared by a firm that is not the
manufacturer of the equipment.

ANSWER: Comply with specifications. The intent of the specification is that the
manufacturer’s required and recommended preventive maintenance and condition
monitoring (predictive maintenance) data, schedules and requirements are
documented to ensure reliability and not void any warranty as well as to provide
client at turnover/closeout of when systems should be retested. Note, it is the
responsibility of the Contractor to provide maintenance on facilities, systems, and
equipment prior to turnover in accordance with the manufacturers and supplier’s
recommendations and requirements so as to prevent voiding any warranties or

_ reducing the life of the systems.
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24. REFERENCE: RFP, Section L(d), Page 95

QUESTION: Is it the Government’s intent that this supplemental information
not exceed 3 pages in total? Or may the Prime and each subcontractor provide
up to 3 pages of supplemental information per each past performance reference
included in accordance with Section L in the response?

ANSWER: Supplemental information must not exceed 3 puges total, regardless of
whether it is being submitted by the prime contractor, or a sub-contractor.

25. REFERENCE: Standard Form 1442 and RFP Cover Letier.

QUESTION: Standard Form 1442 “Sealed offers in original and 3 copies to
perform the work required are due at the place specified in Item 8 by 1530
(hour) local time 10/15/2009”and RFP NNK09289054R Letter to Prospective
Offerors, page 2. “Proposals must be received before 3:00pm October 15, 2009,
Please confirm the required Bid Time?

ANSWER: The Standard Form 1442 takes precedence over the cover letter. The
required time for receipt of proposals is 3:30 P.M. local time.

26. REFERENCE: General Payment Related.

QUESTION: Please clarify if NASA will allow for Mobilization to be a Schedule
of Values Contract Line Item (CLIN)?

ANSWER: No, Mobilization will not be a separately priced contract line itemn.
Mobilization is addressed in the construction schedule after contract award.

27. REFERENCE: RFP, Section H Special Contract Requirements: H.6
NFS 1852.243 Equitable Adjustments (Apr 1998), paragraph (b), pgs
32, and 33. “The percentages for Overhead, profit and commission
are negotiable according to nature, extent and complexity of work
involved, but in case shall they not exceed the following ceilings.”

QUESTION: Please specifically clarify the conditions where a Contractor may
receive Overhead/Profit and Commission (on direct costs only) less than the
stated maximum percentages allowable?

ANSWER: Each request for equitable adjustments is unique. In accordance with
NFS 1852.243 the percentages will be negotiated according to the nature, extent,
and complexity of the work involved in each specific case.

28. REFERENCE: RFP, Section M- Evaluation Factors For Award, (3)
Price Evaluation pg 102,
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QUESTION: Please confirm if a breakdown of Labor, Material and Overhead is

required to be submitted at Bid time?

ANSWER: Yes, please submit them with your price proposal volume. Please see
Section 2 above for the amended section L. The price breakdown will help the
Government establish that the price offered is realistic based on the work being
performed.

Section 4 Clarification to Past Performance Questionnaire

Reference: Appendix L1, Past Performance Questionnaire; 1* page.
There have been some questionnaires submitted without adequate contact
information. In an effort to provide clarity, please see below for a sample form.

TO BE FILLED OUT BY OFFEROR (respondent is customer company)

Respondent | (The Firm of person providing | Company/Org | Respondent's Address
Company Name: | the past performance) Address
Date: Self Explanatory Reéspondent Point | Self Explanatory
of Contact:

FABRICATION PROJECT
Offeror The Offeror’s Contract POC Phone No: Respondent’s Phone #
Point of Email address Respondent’s Email
Contact Fax Number: Respondent’s Fax
Contract No.: Self Explanatory Contract Period: | Self Explanatory

Section 5 Amend RFP, Specification 10C00005, and Drawing 10C0003.

1. REFERENCE: RFP,Page 7, Section C.2, CONTRACT DRAWINGS, MAPS

INSERT:
Specification 14.21.13 — Electric Traction Elevators, part 1.3; change the last sentence of

the first paragraph as follows:

From: “See 79K34350 Shop Drawings for details.”
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To: “See drawings 13-E8336, 14-E8336, and E8292 for details of the existing
elevator control systems.”
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Drawing 10C00005, sheet M-~301; change Specific Note C as follows:
From: “See Shop Drawing 79K34350 for further electrical details.”

To: “See drawings 13-E8336, 14-E8336, and E8292 for further details of the existing
elevator control systems.”

2. REFERENCE: Specification 10C00003, VAB HB3 Platforms for
Constellation Section 14.21.13, Part 1.3 page 283

Change the last sentence of the first paragraph as follows:
Change From: “See 79K34350 Shop Drawings for details.”

To: “See drawings 13-E8336, 14-E8336, and E8292 for details of the existing
elevator control systems.”

3. REFERENCE: Drawing 10C00003, VAB High Bay 3 Platforms for
Constellation, Sheet M-301, Specific Note C.

Change From: “See Shop Drawing 79K34350 for further electrical details.”
To: “See drawings 13-E8336, 14-E8336, and E8292 for further details of the
existing elevator control systems.”
Section 6 Informational Use Only Drawing and Specifications
The Following Drawing and Specifications are hereby provided as
“informational only”. These drawings and specifications are NOT part of the

construction drawings and specifications and are net to be used in this project.

Drawings, 13-.8336 (24 sheets), 14-£8336 (24 sheets), and 18249 (45 sheets),
10C00011 and 10C00012 are provided for “informational use” only.
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